



DLCD

Department of
Land Conservation
& Development

BYLAWS OF THE CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE

ARTICLE I

PURPOSE

The purpose of the CIAC is to implement statewide land-use planning Goal 1: Insure the opportunity for all citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process

ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1. THE COMMITTEE

The state's Citizen Involvement Advisory Committee is established in accordance with ORS 197.160 and 197.235. It shall be referred to in these bylaws as the Committee.

SECTION 2. THE COMMISSION

The Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) shall be referred to in these bylaws as the Commission.

SECTION 3. THE DEPARTMENT

The Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) shall be referred to in these bylaws as the Department.

ARTICLE III

RESPONSIBILITIES

SECTION 1. TO THE COMMISSION

- a. Advise on matters of citizen involvement.
- b. Operate in accordance with ORS 197.160, ORS 197.235, and the Commission's citizen involvement program.
- c. Review and evaluate the Commission's "Citizen Involvement Guidelines for Policy Development" annually and report to the Commission on its evaluation.
- d. Develop and recommend a process for citizen involvement in the adoption and amendment of statewide goals, guidelines and related administrative rules.
- e. Review proposed LCDC policies that have potential effects on citizen involvement and prepare recommendations.
- f. Review citizen involvement programs submitted by cities or counties and report whether such proposed programs adequately provide for public involvement in the planning process. If a new proposal is considered inadequate, the Committee shall specify in what respects it is inadequate and make recommendations for improvement.
- g. Perform other duties related to citizen involvement as requested by the Commission.

SECTION 2. TO THE PUBLIC

- a. Promote public participation in the adoption and amendment of goals, guidelines and related administrative rules.
- b. Review proposed adoptions and amendments to assure compliance with Statewide Planning Goal 1 and applicable statutes for citizen involvement.
- c. Promote widespread citizen involvement in all phases of the planning process at state and local levels.
- d. Review local citizen involvement programs that are found by the Department to be inadequate and prepare recommendations about such programs for the Commission or Department.
- e. Represent the interests of citizens statewide relating to land-use decisions as they pertain to citizen involvement.

ARTICLE IV

MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1. COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE

- a. The Committee shall have up to ten (10) members, each of whom shall be appointed by a majority vote of the Commission.
- b. In selecting committee members, the Commission shall attempt to provide a Committee that is broadly representative of geographies, socio-economic characteristics and racial diversity of communities throughout Oregon. Each of Oregon's congressional districts shall be represented by at least one member of the Committee.
- c. No more than a total of three members may be city, county or state elected officials or land use planners employed by a city or county governmental body at the time of appointment.
- d. Committee members should be residents of the state of Oregon who understand, have participated in, or are concerned about community engagement.

SECTION 2. TENURE

- a. Each of the Committee members shall serve at the pleasure of the Commission.
- b. Each Committee member's term of appointment shall be four years, unless terminated sooner by the Commission.
- c. An incumbent Committee member may be appointed to a second, consecutive four-year term without an open application process. An open application process shall be conducted for the third and subsequent terms of a position if the incumbent requests to continue as a Committee member.

SECTION 3. SELECTION PROCESS

The Committee may make recommendations to the Commission regarding appointments to CIAC.

ARTICLE V

OFFICERS AND DUTIES

SECTION 1. OFFICERS

The Committee officers shall be a chairperson and a vice-chairperson, to be elected by a majority vote of the members, at the June meeting or at a meeting as soon as possible thereafter.

SECTION 2. TERM OF OFFICE

Officers shall hold office for a period of one year, from July to June.

SECTION 3. DUTIES

- a. The chairperson shall preside at all meetings and is entitled to vote on all issues.
- b. The vice-chairperson shall perform all duties of the chairperson in his or her absence and is entitled to vote on all issues.

ARTICLE VI

MEETINGS OF THE COMMITTEE

SECTION 1. REGULAR MEETINGS

The Committee shall establish a time and place for regular meetings, which shall be held approximately once every two months.

SECTION 2. SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings of the Committee may be called by the chairperson, vice-chairperson, or a majority of the Committee members.

SECTION 3. NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETINGS

- a. Notice of all regular meetings shall be given to all members of the Committee and other interested persons at least 10 working days before such meetings.
- b. The Department shall maintain a list of persons and organizations that have expressed their interest in citizen involvement and CIAC. Notice of CIAC meetings shall be communicated to everyone who has asked to be on that list.
- c. Notices of regular CIAC meetings shall be sent to the Capitol Press Room and media outlets at least 72 hours before each meeting.

SECTION 4. NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING

- a. Notice of all special meetings shall be sent to all members of the Committee and other interested persons at least three days before such meetings.
- b. The Department shall maintain a list of persons and organizations that have expressed their interest in citizen involvement and CIAC. Notice of CIAC meetings shall be sent to everyone who has asked to be on that list.
- c. Notices of special CIAC meetings shall be sent to the Capitol Press Room and media outlets at least 24 hours before each meeting.

SECTION 5. CONDUCT OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS

- a. All Committee meetings shall be held in accordance with the provisions of ORS Chapter 192, the Open Meetings Law.
- b. Roberts Rules of Orders, newly revised, shall govern the conduct of meetings.
- c. A quorum for this Committee shall consist of a simple majority of the current membership. Official actions of the Committee shall be taken only when a quorum is present.
- d. An action by a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be an action of the Committee.
- e. Each member of the Committee shall be entitled to one vote on all issues presented at all regular and special meetings at which the member is present.

SECTION 6. STAFF SUPPORT

A member of the Department's staff shall serve as staff to the Committee. Other members of the Department's staff may be called upon as necessary. Minutes of each Committee meeting shall be prepared by staff, distributed to all Committee members and posted on the DLCD web site.

ARTICLE VII

REMOVAL OF MEMBERS

SECTION 1. ATTENDANCE

Members shall be expected to attend all regularly scheduled meetings and special meetings. If three or more consecutive meetings are missed without appropriate notice and reason to the chair, the member shall be requested to resign from the CIAC.

SECTION 2. VACATION OF POSITION

If a resignation is not received when requested under Section 1 above, the Committee shall request the Commission to vacate the position.

ARTICLE VIII

AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

These bylaws may be revised by the committee and approved by LCDC.

SECTION 2. NOTICE TO AMEND BYLAWS

Written notice of such proposed amendment or repeal and the nature thereof shall have been sent to the membership of the Committee and other interested persons at least 10 working days before the date of the meeting at which the amendments are to be considered.

[These bylaws were reviewed by the Land Conservation and Development Commission on May 11, 1990. They were adopted unanimously by the state's Citizen Involvement Advisory Committee on May 18, 1990.]

Adopted: May 1990

Amended:

- *Article V Section 2 – 1999/2000; Article IV Section 2b – June 2003*
- *All Sections – November 2005*
Amendments adopted: December 2, 2005
Article IV Section 1 – May 2021

